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Date Submitted: February 22, 2011 Agenda Date Requested: March 3, 2011 
   Time Requested: 5 minutes 
 
To: Mayor and Board of Supervisors 
 
From: Public Works, Planning Division  
 
Subject Title:  Action to approve a request for a two-year extension of the Final Map for 
a Planned Unit Development known as Ross Park, which consists of 23 detached 
dwelling units on 1.24 acres with 36% of the subject site devoted to open space, located 
at 4749 Snyder Avenue, APN 009-193-01.  (TPUD-07-010)  (Lee Plemel) 
 
Staff Summary: The current Planned Unit Development approval will expire on March 
15, 2011.  This request would extend the Final Map March 15, 2013 to allow time for 
coordination of the project and for the housing market to improve. 
 
Type of Action Requested: 

  Resolution       Ordinance 
  Formal Action/Motion     Other (Specify) 

 
Does This Action Require A Business Impact Statement: (   ) Yes     ( X ) No 
 
Prior Board Action:  Approved the Planned Unit Development Tentative map on 
February 19, 2009 with a vote of 4 ayes, 0 nays, and 1 absent. 
 
Recommended Board Action: I move to approve a request for a two-year extension of 
the Final Map for a Planned Unit Development known as Ross Park, located at 4749 
Snyder Avenue, APN 009-193-01. 
 
Explanation for Recommended Board Action: The applicant is submitting his request 
at least 30 days prior to the final map expiration per the CCMC 17.06.  Staff recommends 
that the Board of Supervisors approve the two-year extension of the Final Map 
recordation requirement to March 15, 2013. 
 
Applicable Statute, Code, Policy, Rule or Regulation: CCMC 17.06 (Final Maps), 
18.02.050 (Review), CCMC 17.06.015 (Time Limit for Recording), and CCMC 17.09 
(Planned Unit Development). 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Explanation of Impact: N/A 
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MEMO TO: Mayor and Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM: Planning Division 
 
DATE: March 03, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Action to approve a request for a two-year extension of the Tentative Map, 
known as Ross Park, which consists of 23 single family detached units on 1.24 acres with 
associated Variances to allow a reduction of the required 20 foot periphery PUD setback, a 
reduction of required MFA setbacks, a reduction of the MFA standard lot area from 6,000 
square feet to approximately 750 square feet, a reduction of the MFA required lot width of 60 
feet to a lot width of 25 feet, and a reduction of the minimum PUD site area from five acres to 
approximately 1.24 acres, located at 4749 Snyder Avenue, APN 009-193-01.  (File: TPUD-
07-010) 
 
Mark Neuffer, Project Manager, on behalf of Ross Park LLC., is requesting a two year 
extension for the filing timeframe for Ross Park PUD from March 15, 2011 to March 15, 2013. 
The project was originally approved in 2007 as a residential Planned Unit Development 
project.  Per the applicant, due to the current economic conditions, the owner does not 
believe it is prudent to proceed with development at this time. This two-year extension 
request is the ninth of several such requests, under the adopted ordinance.  
 

 
At the time of the Planning Commission and BOS review and approval, the applicant had 
noted that the Ross Park development would provide a unique residential product that was 
not readily available in Carson City, because the project orients the building towards the 
streets and provides rear entry garages resulting in a de-emphasizing of the automobile and 
acknowledging the pedestrian friendliness and appropriateness within the surrounding 
context. 

 
The project as presented, encompassed a sound approach to residential development, 
conveniences within walking distance and houses greeting visitors instead of driveways and 
garage doors are elements incorporated within Ross Park. The project was based on specific 
design principles: garages in the rear of houses, accessed via alleys. An alley can be an 
elegant solution to getting the car onto the site without crossing over multiple sidewalk 
points. Since there is no need for multiple curb cuts on the street, there is also more area for 
on-street parking and landscaping. 
 
The architectural design of the single family dwelling units proposed for Ross Park PUS was 
thoroughly designed and is basically older-style homes, but with all the latest amenities and 
functional floor plans. The proposed project is not your typical suburban tract, filled with white 
stucco homes overshadowed with front-loaded garages.  
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The facades of the proposed structures will have architectural articulation by different exterior 
paint colors, materials, roof lines and offsetting of the structures. The exterior paint colors, 
materials and variation of roof lines add to the variations associated with the mix of housing 
including two floor plans and six conceptual elevation schemes.  
 
The developer has incorporated the following to provide aesthetic relief and visual interest for 
Ross Park PUD in addition to enhancing the sense of neighborhood. Stamped concrete is 
placed throughout the development. A change in texture is a visual and visceral signal to both 
driver and pedestrian of the appropriate boundaries for each at a particular location.  

 
It is the recommendation of staff that the BOS approve a two-year extension for Ross Park 
PUD.  If this extension is approved the new expiration date for recordation of a Final Map for 
Ross Park PUD will be March 15, 2013. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommended Motion: “I move to approve a request for a two-year extension of the Final 
Map for a Planned Unit Development known as Ross Park, located at 4749 Snyder Avenue, 
APN 009-193-01”  
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